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2018 295,393,922 21,901 0.9377 70
2019 282,483,837 20,943 1.0035 74
2018 12 280,528,403 20,798 0.9455 70
2019 277,712,084 20,590 0.9428 70
278,332,318 20,636 0.9478 70

282,327,307 20,932 0.9738 72

282,294,989 20,929 0.9795 73

282,762,994 20,964 0.9866 73

284,593,562 21,100 0.9957 74

282,483,837 20,943 1.0035 74

286,032,295 21,206 1.0269 76

282,086,384 20,914 1.0227 76

10 275,996,819 20,462 1.0096 75

11 274,535,385 20,354 1.0148 75
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15 05
2019
2019 2018
16 279,477,002 20,720,425
,16 291,612,352 21,620,140
663 49 17,474 1,296
43,300 3,210 53,200 3,944
2,940,464 218,006 3,741,024 277,360
7,642,771 566,635 5,838,063 432,834
290,104,200 21,508,325 301,262,113 22,335,573
4,311,381 319,646 2,509,710 186,070
561,068 41,598 603,556 44,748
4,872,449 361,243 3,113,266 230,818
281,490,000 20,869,669 315,010,000 23,354,841
(16,777,761) (1,243,903)
3,741,751 277,413 (83,392) (6,183)
12 285,231,751 21,147,082 298,148,847 22,104,756
290,104,200 21,508,325 301,262,113 22,335,573
281,490,000 315,010,000
12 1.0133 75 0.9465 70
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3,075,895 228,047 3,505,715 259,914
627,100 46,493 1,209,400 89,665
12,651 938 7,061 524
2,309 171
3,715,646 275,478 4,724,485 350,273
60,082 4,454 55,428 4,109
295,082 21,877 339,227 25,150
1,180,328 87,510 1,356,908 100,601
737,705 54,603 848,067 62,876
19,431 1,441 17,653 1,309
495,082 36,705 539,227 39,978
619,300 45,915 1,209,400 89,665
295,082 21,877 339,227 25,150
108,735 8,062 114,601 8,497
3,810,827 282,535 4,819,738 357,335
(95,181) (7.,057) (95,253) (7.,062)
(1,059,749) (78,570) (2,916,326) (216,216)

20,079,925 1,488,726
117,571 8,717 98,829 7,327
19,137,747 1,418,873 (2,817,497) (208,889)
19,042,566 1,411,816 (2,912,750) (215,951)
5,411,748 401,227
4,038,088 299,384
9,449,836 700,611
19,042,566 1,411,816 6,537,086 484,660
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15 05
2019 31

375,480,000 375,480,000 27,838,087  (26,227,597)  (1,944,514) (913,080) (67,696) 348,339,323 25,825,877
(60,470,000)  (60,470,000)  (4,483,246) 3,742,438 277,464  (56,727,562)  (4,205,781)
(2,912,750) (215,951)  (2,912,750) (215,951)
9,449,836 700,611 9,449,836 700,611
315,010,000 315,010,000 23,354,841  (16,777,761)  (1,243,903) (83,392) (6,183) 298,148,847 22,104,756

16,777,761 1,243,903  (16,777,761)  (1,243,903)
315,010,000 315,010,000 23,354,841 (16,861,153)  (1,250,086) 298,148,847 22,104,756
(33,520,000)  (33,520,000)  (2,485,173) 1,560,338 115,683  (31,959,662)  (2,369,489)
19,042,566 1,411,816 19,042,566 1,411,816
281,490,000 281,490,000 20,869,669 3,741,751 277,413 285,231,751 21,147,082
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19,042,566 1,411,816 (2,912,750) (215,951)
(3,088,546) (228,985) (3,512,776) (260,437)
(627,100) (46,493) (1,209,400) (89,665)
619,300 45,915 1,209,400 89,665
(42,488) (3,150) (93,530) (6,934)
15,903,732 1,179,103 (6,519, 056) (483,323)
3,105,357 230,231 3,496,274 259,214
1,059,749 78,570 2,916,326 216,216

(20,079,925) (1,488,726)

31,336,786 2,323,309 55,487,430 4,113,838
31,325,699 2,322,487 55,380,974 4,105,945
(29,520,991) (2,188,686)  (62,137,812) (4,606,897)
(29,520,991) (2,188,686)  (62,137,812) (4,606,897)
1,804,708 133,801 (6,756,838) (500, 952)
5,838,063 432,834 12,594,901 933,786
7,642,771 566,635 5,838,063 432,834

65/204



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15-05
2019 31
1QEQ
2015 20
2019 25 1Q EQ
15-05 2015
14
2019 31
100
Signum Momentum Limited 10
11
Quartix Financial Products Il Limited
10
100
MA WCM FP Limited
2018
2018
2018
2018
39
2018

(a
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° 39
(
)
(b
12
12
(c
39
2018
39 39
2018
39 39
2018

291,612,352 291,612,352
17,474 17,474
53,200 53,200
3,741,024 3,741,024
5,838,063 5,838,063

39 39

2018

2,509,710 2,509,710
603,556 603,556
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39

2018

2018
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2019 31 0.6893 2018
0.7431

(a

~ A

(b

~

~

@C )
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12

7,500
0.1

0.025

295,082 2018 339,227
2019 31 25,485 2018 27,639
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0.10
295,082 2018 339,227
74,941 2018 82,962
0.4
1,180,328 2018 1,356,908
299,765 2018 331,848
0.3
0.1
495,082 2018 539,227
43,568 2018 45,173
0.25
737,705 2018 848,067
63,714 2018 69,098
° 2017
e 2017 2019
e 2019 2020
e 2020

e 2015

21
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2019 31
2019 31
2019 31
2019 31
2017 21



15

2018

2018

2019

2017

2019

2020

31

21

21
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2019 21
2020 21
14
2019 2018
276,174,838 308,390,113
3,302,164 (16,777,761)
279,477,002 291,612,352
30
2025 30 100
278,530,000 26,265,379 9.20
278,530,000 253,211,623 88.77

279,477,002 97.97

751204
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2018 31
311,020,000 39,250,724 13.16
311,020,000 252,361,628 84.64
291,612,352 97.80
2019 31 7,642,771 2018 5,838,063 6,123,760
2018 4,297,689 446,515 2018 525,603
26,450 2018 26,426 61,705,428
2018 65,007,410
2015 31 2015 10 ( )
( )
10,000
10,000
2019 2018
281,490,000 2018 315,010,000
1.00 281,490,000 315,010,000
315,010,000 375,480,000
(33,520,000) (60,470,000)

281,490,000 315,010,000
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11
2019

12

31

(a

¢

31

282,483,837

(c

281,490,000

@)

2018
2018

285,231,751

2011

©

295,393,922
315,010,000

2018

281,490,000 2018

(b)
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81 50

2018

2019 2018
285,231,751 298,148,847

(2,748,314) (2,754,925)

282,483,837 295,393,922

281,490,000 315,010,000

1.0035 0.9377
1.0133 0.9465
1.0035 2018 0.9377
2019 31
1.0133 2018 0.9465
298,148,847 2019 31
315,010,000
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30 100

2019 2018
11.10% 13.90%
1.50% 3.40%
10.80% 17.00%
11.80% 8.50%
6.60% 18.50%
16.30% 17.60%
20.10% 11.40%
10.60% 4.70%
11.20% 5.00%
100.00% 100.00%
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2019 31
2019 31 2018 31
2019 31
- - - 279,477,002 279,477,002
- 659 4 - 663
- - - 2,940,464 2,940,464
- . . 43,300 43,300
824,566 647,780 46,665 6,123,760 7,642,771
824,566 648,439 46,669 288,584,526 290,104,200
- - - 4,311,381 4,311,381
- 53,595 - 507,473 561,068
- 53,595 - 4,818,854 4,872,449
824,566 594,844 46,669 283,765,672 285,231,751
2018 31
- - - 291,612,352 291,612,352
- 434 2 17,038 17,474
- - - 3,741,024 3,741,024
- - - 53,200 53,200
786,332 707,358 46,684 4,297,689 5,838,063
786,332 707,792 46,686 299,721,303 301,262,113
- - - 2,509,710 2,509,710
- 46,834 - 556,722 603,556
- 46,834 - 3,066,432 3,113,266
786,332 660,958 46,686 296,654,871 298,148,847
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2019

23,639

31

31

23,639
2019
2018
2018 74,576

2019
2018
2018 74,576
31
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10 2018 10

2019 2018

82,457 78,633
59,484 66,096
4,667 4,669

10 2018 10
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2019 31
2018
13,926,639 2018 16,403,506
2018 13,926,639 2018
16,403,506
2019
31 2.68 2018
1.96
2019 31
2018

¢

Signum Momentum
Limited 11
Quartix Financial Products Il Limited

2019 31
1,063 (2018 31 965

39 (2018 ) (2019 )
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2019 31
- 279,477,002 - - 279,477,002
- 663 - - 663
2,940,464 - - - 2,940,464
43,300 - - - 43,300
7,642,771 - - - 7,642,771
10,626,535 279,477,665 - - 290,104,200
4,311,381 - - - 4,311,381
561,068 - - - 561,068
4,872,449 - - - 4,872,449

2018 31
- 291,612,352 - - 291,612,352
- 17,474 - - 17,474
3,741,024 - - - 3,741,024
53,200 - - - 53,200
5,838,063 - - - 5,838,063
9,632,287 291,629,826 - - 301,262,113
2,509,710 - - - 2,509,710
603,556 - - - 603,556
3,113,266 - - - 3,113,266

14

15
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16
2019 31
2019 31
2018 291,612,352
(31,155,526)
(1,059,749)
20,079,925
2019 31 279,477,002
19,020,176
2018 31
2017 338,283,924
(53,205,082)
(2,916,326)
5,411,748
4,038,088
2018 31 291,612,352
(2,916,326)
17

15,641,946
15,410,000
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 July 2019

MNates 201% 2018
AUD ALUD

ASSETS
Firancial assets af far value through profit or loss 716 279,477,002 .
Available-for-sale financial assets 7,16 - 201,612,352
Interest receivable 663 17,474
Redemption fee receivable 43,300 53,200
Amotnt due from broker 2,940,464 3,741,024
Cash and cash equivalenis 8 7,642,771 5,838,063
TOTAL ASSETS 290,104,200 301,262,113
LIABILITIES
Redemption payable 4,311,381 2,509,710
Accounts pavable and accrned liabilities 5 561,068 63,556
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,872,445 3,113,266
EQUITY
Unitholders” capital 9 281,490,000 315,010,000
Reserves on avallable-for-sale financial assets - { 16,777,761)
Surplus/( deficit) 3,741,751 ( §3,392)
TOTAL EQUITY 12 285,231,751 208,148,847
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 290, 104,200 301,262,113
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 9 281,490,000 315,010,000
MET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 12 AUDL 0133 AUDO 9465

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statemends.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

Motes 01e 2018
AUD AUD
INCOME
Interest income from performmance linked notes 3075895 3,505,715
Redemption fee income i 627,100 1,209,400
Other interest income 12,651 7061
Other income - 2,309
Total investment income 3.715.646 4,724,485
EXPENSES
Aundit fees 60,082 55,428
Agent company’s fee 5 295082 ke
Distributor's fee 5 1,180,328 1,356,908
Investment advisor fees ] 737,705 848,067
Legal fees 19,431 17.653
Management fees - 495,082 339,227
Redemption fee expense & 619,300 1,209,400
Tmstee and trustee’s delegate fees 5 205082 339,227
Cher operating expenses 108,735 114,601
Total operating expenses 3.810.827 4,819,738
NET LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES { 95, 181) { 95.253)
INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES
Met realised loss on financial assets at far value through
profit or loss [ 1,059,749 ( 2.916,326)
Met change in unrealised gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 20,079,925 -
Net foreign exchange gain 117.571 98,829
19,137,747 { 2.8174587)
NET INCOME/NLOSS) FOR THE YEAR 19,042,566 ( 2.912.7500
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Change in fair value of available for sale financial assets - 5411748
Gain on disposal - 4,038,088
- &.445.836

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR 19,042,566 6,537.086

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 31 July 2019

ALl Augnst 2017
Change in equity for 2018
Redemption of units
Nt loss
Other canprehensive ncome
At 31 July 2018

Effiect on adoption of
International Financial
Reporting Standard 9

As restated

Change in equity for 2019
Redanption of units

Met income

AL31 Jube 2019

Reserves on

available-
Mumber of For-gale
units Unithalders” financial (Deficity’
cutstandmg capital AsEels Surplus  Total equity
AUD AUD AUD AUy
(MNoie &) Mote 93 (MHote T)

375,480,000 375480000 (26227.3097) ( 913,080) 348339313

( 604700000 ( 60,470,000) . 3742438 ( 56.727.562)
. . < 2912750) ( 2,912.750)
: é 9,449,836 . 9,449,836

315,010,000 315,010,000  (16,777,7601) 83,397) 298148847

- - 16,777,761 (16,777,761} -

35,010,000 315,010,000 - (16861.153) 298148817
{ 33,520,000) ( 33,520,000) - 1,560338 ( 31.959.662)

; . - 19.042,566 19,042,566
281,490,000 281,490,000 . 3741751 285.231.751

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-05 (AUDY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

Motes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Wet income/(l1oss) for the yvear
Adjustments for:
Interest meome
Redemption fee income &
Redemption fee expense a
Decrease in accounts payable and accrved liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
et realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Met change in unrealised gain on Aimancial assets o farvaloe
through profit or loss
Proceeds from sale of financial assets @t fair value through
profit or loss
Met cash lows generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on redemption of units
Met cash flows usedin financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cazh equivalents at beginning of vear

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019 2018
AUD ALUD

19,042,566  ( 2,912,750)

{ 3.088.546) ( 3,512.776)
( 627.100) ( 1,209.400)
619,300  1,209.400
( 42488) (93,530
15,903,732 ( 6.519,056)
3,105357 3496274

1,059,749 2916326
(20,079.925) -

31.336.786 55487430
31325699 55380974

(29.520.991) (62.137.812)
(29.520.991) (62,137,812)

1,804,708  { 6,756838)

5,838.063 12,594,901

7642571 5,838,063




EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PFHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

L. THE TRUST

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust {the “Trust”) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
miaster trust deed dated 20 March 2015 under the laws of the Cayman Islands entered info between 10
EQ Management Bernmda Limited (the “Manager™ ) and HSBC Trostee (Cayman) Limited (the
“Trustee” ). The Manager was formerly known as Moore Mamagement (Bermnda) Limited amd
changed its name to 1Q) EQ Managemen Bermuda Limited on 25 March 2019. The Trust has been
established as an umbrella unit trust wath the ability to create and establish separate potfolio or series
trusts to which assets and liabilities atnbutable to such series trust will be applied.

Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-05 (AUD) (the * Series Trust™) is a series
trost of the Trust constituted pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated 14
May 2015 made between the Trustee and the Manager, As at 31 July 2019, two series trusts had been
establizhed.

The mvestment objective of the Series Trust is (o pursue capital gain over the mediom to long term,
while aiming to ensure a net aseet value per Unit at the time of the maturity date that is not less than
100%% of the Australian Dollar *AUD™ denominated offer price. The Mamager aims to achieve such
mvestment objective by mvesting all of the proceeds from the 1ssue of wnits in 10-vear Australian
Dollar denominated zero coupon notes (each a “Zero Coupon Note” ) izsued by Signum Momentum
Limited {the “Zero Coupon Note Issuer™) and 10-yvear Australian dollar denominated performance
linked nates (each a " Performance Linked Note™ ) issued by Quartix Financial Products 11 Limited (the
“Performance Linked Note Issuer”), The Zero Coupon Notes seek to provide ther holders with
protection of 100%% of the Zero Cowpon Noles' principal amount {in Australian Dollars) if such holders
hold their Zero Coupon Motes until the MNote Matunity Date, The remaining net proceeds from the
izsne of wats, after investment m the Zero Coupon Noles and pavment of certain expenses, will be
invested in the Performance Linked Notes. Investment in the Performance Linked Notes will provide
investors with exposure to the performance of MA WCM FP Limited {the “Underlying Fund™),

=

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards and interprefations issued and effective for the financial vear
beginning 1 August 2018

The Series Trust applied, for the first time, certain standards and amendments, which are effective for
anmual periods beginmng on or after 1 August 2008, A number of other new standards are also
effective from 1 Angust 2018, but they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust’s financial
statements.

The nature and the impact of the new standard and amendment is described below:

il ermiaty Fir 14l

The Series Trost adopted IFRS & Finencial Tnstraments on s effective date of 1 August 2018, [FRS
9 replaces International Accounting Standards (“IAS") 39 Financial Tnstriments: Recognition and
Measuremenyt and infrodices new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accourting. [FRS 9 is not applicable (o items that have already been derecognised at | August
2018, the date of initial application.
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PFHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (comtinued)

£

(a)

TTIALTOTEAL - RTIET [
Claszification and measurement
The Series Trust has assessed the classification of fimancial instruments as at the date of initial
application and has applied such classification retrospectively. Based on that assessment:

* Debt instruments are acquired in line with the investment objectives of the Series Trust and
any sale prior to maturity is for the purpose of funding the early redemptions made by
investors of the Series Trust. Therefore, the selling of the investment is only incidental and
not achieved either of collecting contractual cash flows alone or collecting contractual cash
flow and selling financial assets within the ordinary course of business. Thus, such
imvestments are measured ot Fair Valoe Through Profit or Loss (“FVPL™ L

+ Financial assels previously classified as loans and receivables are held to collect contractual
cash flows and give nse (o cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.
Thus, such instrments continue to be measured at amonised cost inder [FRS 9.

*  The classification of financial liabilities under IFR S 9 remains breadly the same as under [AS
39, The miain impact on measurement from the classification of iabilities under IFRS 9 relates
tothe element of gains or losses for firancial liabilities designated as al FVPL attributable (o
changes in credit nsk. IFRS 9 requires that such element be recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless this trealment creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, in which cage, all gains and losses on that Lability (including the effects of
changes in credit risk) should be presented in profit or loss. The Series Trust has not
designated any financial liabilities at FVPL. Therefore, this requirement has not had an impact
on the Senes Trost,

(b} Impairment
IFRS & requires the Series Trust to record expected credit loss ("ECL™) on all of itz loans and
trade receivables, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. Given the limited exposure of the Series
Trust to credit riske (his amendment as not had a material impact on the financial statements. The
Series Trust only holds trade receivables with no financing component and which have maturities
of less than 12 months at amortized cost and therefore has adopted an approach similar to the
general approach to ECLs

{c) Hedge accounting
The Series Trust has not applied hedge accounting under [AS 39 nor will it apply hedge
accounting under [FRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 have been adopted retrospectively as of
the date of imtial application on 1 Aungust 2018, However, the Senies Trust has chosen to take
advantage of the option not to restate compamatives, Therefore, prior year figores are presented and
measured under [AS 39 The following table shows the origimal measurement categories in
accordance with 1TAS 39 and the new measuwrement categories under IFRS 9 for the Series Trust's
finamcial assets and financial habilities as a1 1 August 2018:
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PFHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

2 CHAMGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND RDISCLOSURES (contimed)
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 feantinued)
Financal assels
1 August 2018 48 measu EI:E;:: AERED measml':':;sngl
classilication AUD classification AUD
Available-for-sale Available-for-
financial assets sale 291,612,352 FVPL 291,612,352
Loans and
Interest receivalle receivables 17474 Amortised cost 17474
Redemption fee Loans and .
receivable receivables $3,2000  Amortizsed cost 53,200
Amount due from Loans and .
broker receivables 3,741,024 Amortised cost 3,741,024
Cash and cash Loans and _
equivalents receivables 5,838,063  Amortised cost 5,838,063
Financial liabilities
IAS 39 FRS IFRS 9
1 August 2018 clmsir::lafii: measurement dassil:caﬂaa measurement
AUD AUD
Other financial
Redmtptimpaglable liabilities 2509710 Amortised cost 2,509,710
Agcounts payable ’
and accrue Other financial
liabilities liabilities 603,556 Amortised cost 603 556

In line with the characteristics of the Series Trust's financial instruments as well as its approach (o
their management, the Series Trust neither revoked nor made any new designations on the date of
initial application. IFRS 9 has mot resulted in changes in the carrying amount of the Series Trust's
financial imstruments due to changes in measurement categories. All financial assets that were
claszified as Available-for-sale under IAS 39 are now classified as FVPL under IFRES 9, All financial
assets that were classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost continme to be
migasired al amontised cost. In addition, the application of the ECL mode under [FRS @ has not
gignificantly changed the carrving amounts of the Series Trust's amontised cost firancial azsets. The
carrying amounts of amortised costl instruments continued to approximate these instruments” fair
values on the date of transition after transitioning to [FRS 9.

There are no other new standards and amendments to existing standards that are effective for anmal

periods beginming on | August 2015 that have 2 material effect on the financial statements of the
Series Trust.
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PFHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

B

CHANGES [N ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {contimed)

There are no standards and interpretations that are issued, bt ool yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Series Trust's fimancial statements that would be expected 1o Tave a significant impact
on the Senies Trust.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Senes Trust's financial statements requires management to make judzements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the repomted amounts of revenes, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a matenal adjustment to the carmving amount of the asset or hability
affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following

judzements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
slatements;

Craig concert

The Seres Tt s management has made an assessment of the Seres Test's ability to continue as a
going concern and 15 satished that the Series Trust has the resources 1o continue in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant douldt upon the Series Trust’s ability to continne as a going concerm. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis,

Taves

Uncertainties exist with respect 1o the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax
laws on foreign withhol ding tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences arising
between the actual investment income and the assumptions made, or futmre changes (o such
assumptions, conld necessitate fulure adjustments to tax expense already recorded The Series Trud
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible comsequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are based
on vanoms factors, such as experience of previous tax awdits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may anse on a wide vanely of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
investment s domicile. As the Series Trust assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
out flow with respect 1o taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised.
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PFHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statemert of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFR Ss issned by the International
Acconnting Standards Board (“IASB") and interprefations issued by International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™) of the TASB. The accounting policies adopted are
corsistent with those of the previous financial vear, other than as disclosed in Note 2.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepd for fimancial assets at
fair value through profit or loss that have been measured ai fair value, The financial statements are
presented in Australian Dollars * AUD™ ), which 1= also the Senes Trost's finctional currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest AUD except where otherwise indicaned.

Bevenue recognition

Fevenne is recogmised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow (o the Series Trust and
when the revenue can be meassured reliably. Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis
taking info accoumt the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable,

Financial instruments

{14} Classificarion - Policy effective from I Aupese 2008 (TFRE 9]

In gccordance with IFRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its financial assets and financial liabihtes at
initial recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

Financial avsely
The Series Trust ¢lassifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amonised cost or measured
at FVPL on the basis of both:

*  The entity's business model for managing the financial assels
*  The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Finane fal asseis measured af amortised cost

A debt instroment is measured at amortised cost 1P it 15 held within a business model whose objective
15 10 hold financial assets in order to collect contractml cash flows and its contractual terms give nise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest on the principal
amount outstanding, The Series Trost mcludes i ths category are ilerast receivable, redemption fee
receivable, amount due from broker, cash and cash equivalents.

Financial assets measured ar FVPL
A financial assel is measured al FVPL iF

(a) Its comtractual terms do not give rise to cash Aows on speafied dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPL on the principal amonnt culstanding: or

{b) It iz not held within a business model whose objective iz either to collect contractual cash flows,
of 1o both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

(c) AL initial recogrition, it is irrevocably designated as measured st FVPL when doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses onthem on different bases.
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instriuments {continmed)
{4 Classiffearfon - Poliey effective from 1 Augist 2018 (TFRS 9) feontimed)
Financial assets measured ai FVPL jeominued)

The Series Trust includes in this category:

*  Debtinstruments. These melude investments that are held under a isiness model (o mamage them
on a fair value basis for investment income and fair value gains.

Finanelal Habilfifes

Financial Kabiliies measured cf amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FYPL. The Series Trust
inclhiudes in this category are redemption payable, accounts payable and accriued labilities.

({8 Classiffcarfon - Policy effecitve before 1 Augist 2018 (T4A5 39)

The Series Trust classifies ils financial assefs and financial liabilities at initial recognition into the
following categories, in accordance with IAS 39 Fimameiadl [nstruments: Recognition and
Meazsurement.

Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are intended to be held for an indefinite period and
meay be sold in response (o changes in available cash resources arising from unit redemptions. The
Series Trust classifies its investments as “available-for-sale financial assets™.

Loans and receivable s

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted inoan active market. The Series Trust includes in this category amounts relating to
inferest receivable, redemption fee receivable and amount due from broker.

Cifer finaneial labilittes

This category includes all fimancial liabilities, cther than those classified as held for trading. The Series
Truet includes in this category amonnts relating o redemplion payable and accounts payable and
acered habilities,
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continmed)

fif} Recognition

The Series Tt recognises a financial assel or lability when, and only wher, it becomes a panty (o
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of aszets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
(regnlar way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Series Trost commits (o
purchase or sell the asset,

{iii} fmitfead measurement
Financial assets at FVPL are initially recorded in the statement of financial position &t fair value. All
transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit or less.

Financial assets {other than those classified as at FVPL ) are measured initially at their fair value plus
any directly attnbutable incremental costs of acquisition or 1ssue,

{ivh Subsequent mweasurement

Adter imitial measurement, the Series Trust measures financial instrements which are classified as at
FVPL at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of these financial instruments are recorded
in “net change in unrealised gan on financial assets at FVPLY in the statement of comprehensive
income, Interest and dividends eamed or paid on these instruments are recorded separately in interest
reverme of expense and dividend revenme or experse in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at FVPL, are measured st amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecogmized as well as through the amortisation process,

The effective interest method is a method of calewlating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
finamcial habality and of allocating the inerest income or inferest expense over the relevani penod.
The effective interest ate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fiture cash pavments or receipis
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrving amount of the financial asset or fimncial labality, When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Senes Trust estumates cash flows considenng all contractual terms of the financial
instruments but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts,
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continmed)

vl Derecopmition

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

= The Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation (o pay the received cash flows in full withow material delay to a third pany under a
“pass-throngh” arrangement; and

= Either (a} the Series Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(bythe Series Trost has neither ransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Series Trust has transferred 88 nghts (o receive cash flows from an asset or las entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the assel is recognised to the extent of the
Series Trost's contimiing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Series Trust also recognises an
associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Series Trust has retained

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged
cancelled or expired.

Fair value measurement

The Series Trust measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date, Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a lability in an crderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  Inthe principal market for the asset or lability, or
* Inthe absence of a pringipal market, in the most advantageows market for the asset or hability,

The principal or the most advantageows market must be accessible to the Series Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
wontld use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-firancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to

generate economic benefits by using the assel in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best nse,
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurament (continmned)

The fair value of firancial instrument s 15 based on their quoted market prices ona recognised exchange
and valued at last traded price or sourced from a reputable broker or counterpanty, in the case of non-
exchange traded instruments, at the reponting date without any deduction for estimated future selling
cosls,

For all other fimancial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techrigues include the
markel approach (i.e. wsing recent arm's length market transactions adjusted a3 necessary amd
reference to the cument market value of another instrument that is substaniially the same) and the
income approach {i.c., discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making as much nse
of available and supportable market data as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair valoe is messured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, descnibed as follows, based on the lewest level input that
i= significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

*  Level 1 - Queded (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asseis or liabilities

*  Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement is directly or imdirectly observable

= Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigmnificant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and linalities that are recognised in the financial statemenis on a recurring basis, the Series
Trust determunes whether transfers have ocomred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value measurement a5 a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Policy effective from 1 August 20158 (TFRS 9

For financial assets at amortised cost, impaoment allowances are recogmised under the general
approach where expected credit losses are recogmised in two stages. For credit exposures where there
s not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Series Trust is required
to provide for credit losses that result from possible default events within the next 12 months. For
those credit exposures where there has been a sigraficant increase i credi nsk since inatial
recognition, a losg allowance iz required for credit losses expected over the remmining life of the
exposire irrespective of the timing of the default.
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (contimied

Policy effective before | August 2005 (T4A8 39)

The Seres Trust assessed at each repoting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
was impaired A financial asset or a group of financial assets was deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there was an objective evidence of impairment a5 a result of one or more events that had oceurred
after the imitial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘Toss event’ ) and that loss event had an impact on
the estimated fiture cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that could be
reliably estimated,

Evidence of impairment might include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors was
experiencing significant financial difficulty, defanlt or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they would emer bankrupley or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicated that there was a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes i arrears or economue conditions that correlated with defaults, 1f there was objective
evidence that an impairment loss had been incurred, the amount of the loss was measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amound and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future ECL s that kad not yet been incurmed) diseounted using the asset’s onginal effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset was rednced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss was recognised in profit or loes as ‘credit loss expense’,

Foreign currency (ransactions
The Series Trust s functional and presentstion currency 15 the Australian dollar (* ALUD™Y,

The functional currency reflects the cumrency in which the Series Trust primarily generates amd
expends cash from its activities.

Transactions during the penod in cumencies other than the functional cumency are recorded a the
rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign cumencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing a the reporting period
Fealised and unrealised exchange gams or losses on foreign currency transactions are charged or
credited as profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as net exchange gains or losses.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transkated
using the exchange rates a5 at the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measwred at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The rate of exchange in effect at 31 July 2019 was AUDI = USD06893 (2018 AUD I=USD0.T431),
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Series Trust if

(a) the pary is a person of a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joind control over the Series Trust,
(1} has significant influence over the Series Trost, or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Series Trost or of a parent of the
Series Trust;
or

(h)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

{1} the entity and the Series Trust are members of the same group;

(11} one entity 15 an associale of joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the entaty };

(i) the entity and the Series Trust are joint ventures of the same third party;

{(iv) one entity is ajoint veniure of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

{v) theentityis a post-emplovment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Series
Trust or an entity related to the Series Trust;

{(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

{vi1) & person iderdified in (a)(i) has sigmficant mflnence over the entity or 15 a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entityy, amd

{viiijthe entity, or any member of the Series Tt of which it 13 a part, provides key management
personne] services to the Senes Tros .

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash @ bank. cash on hamd, tme deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant
nisk of changes in value, Cash al bank 15 carried at cost,

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in other currency are translated inlo AUD at the applicable
rate of exchange al the reporting date,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

l L
Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:

*  The redeemable units enfitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Senes Troa's net assets in
the event of the Series Trust's liguidation

*  The redeemable units are inthe class of instrumends that is subordinate to all other classes of
instriemnens,

¢  The redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features,

#  The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or ancther
financial asset other than the holder's rights to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's ned assets,
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)

Unitholders' capital {contined)

« The todal expected cash flows atiributable to the redeemable umits over the life of the
instrument are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change inthe recognised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised nel assets of the Series
Trust over the life of the instrunent.

Inaddition to the redeemable units having all the above features, the Series Trust must have no other
financial instruiment of contract that has!
»  Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assets or the change in the fair valne of the recogmised and unrecognised net assets of the
Series Trust, and
#  The effect of substamtially restricting or fixing the residual return to the instroment holders,

The Series Trust continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units, 1f the
redeenable panticipating units cease (o have all the features or meet all the conditions set oul o be
classified as equity, the Series Trust would reclassify them as financial liabilities and measore them
at fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carmying amound
recognised in equity. [fthe redeemable units subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions
to be classified as equity, the Series Trust wounld reclassify them as equity instruments and measure
them &t the carmying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification.

The issuance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable participating units are accounted for as
equity transactions. Upon issuance of units, the consideration received is included in equity,

Mo gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
izsuance, redemption, or cancellation of the Series Trust's own edquity instruments,

Al L

Provasion for fiture expenses es Trust
As provided for within the memorandum (the “Offering Memorandum”™), upon its
establishment. the Series Trost has provided for cenain fees, inchiding administration fees, andit fees,
and other operating expenses, payable to senvice providers for the term of the Series Trust as
determingd by the Manager, This up-front provision of fees is intended to ensure that confinuing
investors are not disadvaniaged when redemptions occur leaving them with a disproporiiomate share
of these costs which were committed at the launch of the Series Trust. These provisions have been
fully reflected in the net asset value published donng the cirrent accouming period,

The andited financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFR Ss. Cenain of these provisions
represent provisions for expenses relating (o services that will be provided to the Series Trust over its
life and therefore are required to be recognised over the life of the Series Trust in accordance with
IFR.Ss.

Therefore, where these provisions relate to expenses to be incurred in fiture periods, these have been
excluded from the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of financial position. As the
exchision of these provisions in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial
position resulis in a difference in comparizon to the published net asset value for the reasons stated
above, a reconciliation has been provided in Note 12 to the financial statements.
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

‘-ilel. gmns or lc-sses on ﬁnan-:ml asselsnl F‘-.-"PL are chnn,ges in l]le fmr wEue -:rf financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL and exclude interest income.

Unrealised gains and lesses comprise changes in the fair value of fimancial instruments for the period
and from reversal of the prior period’s unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which

were realised in the reporting period.

Realised gains and losses on disposals of fimncial instruments classified as at fair value through profit
or loss are caleulated using the weighted average method They represent the difference between an
instrument’ s initial carryving amount and disposal amount.

3 FEES

Trustee and trostee' s delesate fees
The Trustee and the Trustee’s Delegate are entitled to receive a trustee fee of 0. 1% per annum of the

offer price multiplied by the mumber of units cutstanding (the “Fee Amount™) accrsed and caleulated
on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears, subject to a minimum quarerly fee of
AUDT.500, The Trstee and the Tmstee’s Delegate wall be entitled 1o receive transaction and
processing fees at normal commercial rates. For the custody of the Trost's assels, the Trostee and the
Trustees Delegate will also be entitled to receive a custodian fee of 0.025% per annum of the assets
indder custody, acerued and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monghly in amears,

The trustee and trustee’s delegate fees for the year totaled AUD295 082 (2018: AUD339,227) of
which AU2S 485 was payable as at 31 July 2019 (20018 AUD27.639) and 15 included in accounts
payable and accroed liabilities,

s
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Secunities Co., Lid {the “ Agent Company and Distributor™ }is entitled
to receive a fee of 0.10%% per anmum of the Fee Amount accmed and calculated as at each valuation
day and payable monthly in amrears,

The agent company's fee for the vear totaled AUD2D5082 (2018: AUD339.227) of which
ALUDTA94 1 was payvable as at 31 July 20019 (2018 AUDE2962) and iz included in accounts payable
and accroed liabilities,

The Agent Company and Distributor is also emtitled to receive a distnibator fee of 0.4% per anmum of
the Fee Amount accrued and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The distribator's fee for the yvear totaled AUDIIS0328 (20018 AUDL356.908) of which

ALT299.765 was payable as at 31 July 2019 (2018: AUD331,848) and iz included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.
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b FEES {continued)

Management fee

The Manager is entitled toreceive a management fee of 0.3% per anmim of that pant ofthe Fee Amount
which is equal to or less than AUD 100,000,000 and 0.1% per anmim of that part of the Fee Amount
which is greater than AUD 00,000,000 accrued and calculated on each valuation day, pavable
monthly in amears and subject 1o a minimum anneal fee of AUD20,000. The Manager will also be
entifled to receive oul of the assets of the Series Trust an inception fee of USD60,000 payable as soon
as possible after the initial closing date.

The mamagemert fee For the vear tolaled AUD495082 (2018 AUDS532227) of which
AUD43 568 was payable as af 31 July 201% (2018 AUDMS,173) and is included in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities,

Investment advisor fees

Matsubashn UF) Kokosm Asset Management Co., Lid. (the *Investment Advisor”™ 1= entitled to receive
a fee of 0.25% per annnum of the Fee Amount accrued and calculated as at each valuation day and
payable monthly in arrears.

The investment advisor fee for the year totaled AUD737,705 (2018 AUDS48.067) of which
AUDG3,714 was payable as at 31 July 2019 (2018: AUDS9,098) and is included in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities,

&, REDEMPTION FEES

Redemption fee income

Pursuant to Appendix 1 of the offering memorandiom, the Manager may deduct from the repurchase
proceeds payable in respedt of each unit repurchased a repurchase fee for the account of the Series
Trust calculated in accordance with the following sliding scale:

. From the commencement of the Series Trust to, and including, the first business day
in June 2017, this fee shall be 3% of an amount calculated by multiplying the mumber
of units being repurchased by the offer price.

. From and mecluding the day follovwing the first business day of June 2017 to, and
including the first business day in June 2019, this fee shall be 2% of an amount
caleulated by multiplying the mumber of units being repurchased by the offer price.

. From and including the day following the first business day in June 2019 to, amd
including the first business day in June 2020, this fee shall be 1% of an amount
calculated by multiplying the number of units being repurchased by the offer price.

. After the first business day in June 2020, no repurchase fee will be charged
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f, REDEMPTION FEES {continued)

Redemption fee expense
Pursuant to the note terms for the Performance Linked Note, the Performance Linked Note Issuer will
charge an early redemption fee in accordance with a sliding scale:

. From and including the izsue date (21 May 2015) of the Performance Linked Nae to
and including the second anniversary of the issue date {21 May 2017}, this fee shall be
3% of the principal amount to be redeemed as of the relevant secondary market trade
date.

* From and excluding 21 May 2017 to, and including the fourth anmversary of the issue
date {21 May 2019), this fiee shall be 2%6 of the principal amonnt to be redeemed as of
the relevant secondary market trade date.

* From and excluding 21 May 2019 1o, and including the fifth anniversary of the issue
date (21 May 2020), this fee shall be 1% of the principal amount to be redeemed as of
the relevant secondary market trade date,

. After 21 May 2020, no early redemption fee will be charged.

With regards to repurchase of units and note trades around the year end date, the trade date of the
Performance Linked Note being the 15 of May and the repurchase date of the unmits being the 14 of
May, the accrual of the redemption fee expense and that of the redemption fee income are recognised
in different fimancial periods. Comsequently, redemption fee receivable and redemption fee payvable
are recognised for the unsettled repurchase of units and note trades, respectively, as at the end of the

reporting period.
7. FIMAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2009 2018
ALUD ALD
Financial assets at FVPL (2018 Available-for-sale firmncial
assels ), at cost 276,174 338 308,390,113
Unrealised gain/(loss) 3302,164  ( 16,777.761)
Financial assets at FVPL (2018: Asvailable-for-sale financial
aszets), at fair value 279477002 291612352

The Performance Linked Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying Fund The return from
the Performance Linked Note will be determined by reference to the value of a notional investmert in
the Underlving Fund. The Performance Linked Note has been issued by the Performance Linked Mote
Tesuer with a maturity date of 30 April 2025,

The payment by the Zero Coupon Note lssuer of the redemption amount of the Zero Coupon Mote at
echeduled maturity date is secured by a swap, under whichthe Zero Coupon Note Issuer pays the issue
proceeds of the Zero Coupon Mote to swap counterpanty on the issue date and receives from swap
counterpany the scheduled redemption price multiplied by the principal amount on scheduled maturnty
date. The Zero Coupon Note will be redeemed on their scheduled maturity date on 30 Apnl 2025 at
100%o of their principal amount
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE FERFORM ANCE OF

WINTON 15-05 (AUDY
NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR. LOSS (continued)

The breakdown of the financial assets at far value through profit or loss is as follows:

Heldings

As at 31 July 2019

Performance Linked Nole
Zero Coupon Note
Teaal

Holdings

Asat 31 July 2018
Performance Linked Note

Zero Coupon Note
Tedal

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Fair value %o of net
AUD assels

278,530,000 26,265,379 9.20%
278,530,000 253,211,623 38.77%

279477002 97.97%

Fair value o of net
ALD assels

310,020,000 35,250,724 13, 16%0
1020000 252,361,628 B.64%

201,612,352 97 80%

Ag at 31 July 2019, the cash at bank of AUDT642,771 (2018: AUDS838.063) represented an
Australian dollars deposit of AUD6,123.760 (2018: AUDY,297,689), an USD deposit of USD446,515
(2018: USD525,603), a GEP deposit of GBP26, 450 (2018; GBP26,426) and a non interest bearing
IPY deposit of IPYG1, 705,428 (2018 JPY635,007.410), All deposits were placed with The Honglkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited ("HSBC”), an affiliated company of the Trustee,

>, UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL

Subscriptions

During the Initial Offer Period, Units may be subscribed for by Eligible Investors at the Offer Price
per Unit, The Imtial Offer Period will commence on 31 Angost 201 5 and will close on 7 October 2015
(the "Initial Offer Period"). Units subscribed for during the Initial Offer Period will be issued on the
Imitial Closamg Drate. The Manager may determune toterminate the imbal offer of Units for any reason,

Following the expiration of the Initial Offer Period, Units will not be available for subscription.

Redemptions

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day, which
is each Drealing Day and’or such other day or days as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee)
may i any particular case determine, up to and including the Final Repurchase Dy,

The minimum number of Units that may be submitted for repurchase as at any Repurchase Day by
any Umatholder 15 10,000 Umts, with amounts in excess thereof being i integral multiples of 10,000

ar guch other amounts as the Manager may determine.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE FERFORM ANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

2, UNMITHOLDERS CAPITAL (contined)
2019 2018
AUD AUD
Units in issue:
281 A90,000 {2018 315.010,000) umnits of AUD 100 each 281,490,000 315,010,000

MNumber of Mumber of

umits umits
Wumber of issued and fully paid units:
Al beginning of the year 315010000 375,430,000
Redeemed during the year { 33.520,000) ( 60,470,000}
At end of the year 281,490,000  315.010.000

1. TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman [slands, the Trust and the Series Trust will not be liabie for amy
profits or capital gains tax in the Cayman [slands.

The Trust has received an underaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayvman Islands in
accordance with Section 81 ofthe Truss Law (2011 Revision) of the Cayman [slands that, for a period
of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Tmust, any legislation emacted in the Cayman Islands
imposing tax computed on profits or income, or computed on capital assets, gains or appreciation or
any tax in the nature of estate ddy or inheritance tax shall not be applicable to the Trost.

Income from other junsdictions, including distnbutions from secunties 1ssned in olher countnes, may

be subject to withholding or capital gain taxes imposed by such countries. Withholding taxes on the
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country™s tax rates,

11. DISTRIBUTION

Mo distribution was paid or payable during the year ended 31 July 20019 (2018 Nil).
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

12.

FRECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

Met assets altributable to unitholders per financial statements

Adjustment to provisions (see (a) below)

Met azsets nsed for calenlating published net asset valne
per unit as ai the reporting date

Published number of units in issue as at 31 July

Published net assel value per unit in issue (see (b) below)

{see Note 9)

Net assel value per umil in issue (see (¢) below)

2018 2018
AUD ALTD

285231,751 298,148,847

( 2.748.314) ( 2.754,925)

282483837 295393922

251,490,000  315010,000

AUD 10035 AL S3TT

AUDLO133  AUDO.S465

{a]  The published net asse value per unit issued is calculated in accordance with the Offering
Memorandum and incledes a provision for the trustee fee, audit fee and other operating expenses
throngheut the intended life of the Series Trust. instead of those amounts being expensed in the

(b)

period they relate to, as required under [FRSs.

The calculation of published net asset value per unit of AUD1.0035 (2018: AUDO.9377) is
based on the net asset value of AUD282 483 837 (20018: AUD295,393.922) and on the total
number of 231,490,000 units issued at 31 July 20019 (2018: AUD315.010,000),

The calculation of net asse value aitributable to wmtholders per the financial statements per unit
aff AUD 10133 (2018 AUDO 9465 15 bazed on the net asset value of AUD285,231,751 (2018:
AUD298,1458,847) and on the total number of 281,490,000 units issued at 31 July 2019 (2018;

AUD315,010,000),
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE FERFORM ANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

Other finandal instruments

The Series Truat's investing activities expose it 1o various (vpes of risk which are associated with the
financial instruments in which it invests. The most important types of financial sk to which the Series
Trust is exposed are market risk, credit nsk, and Bguidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency
rigk, price risk and inferest rafe nsk.

The investment management policy of the Seres Trust is determined through the following, process:
The Manager provides non-discretionary management of the Series Trnst's assets and primanily will
ensure imvestments are consistent with the investment objectives of the Series Trust and is responsible
for taking, reasonable steps and exercizsing all doe diligence to avoid the property of the Series Trst
being used or invested contrary to the investmen and borrowing limitations set out in the Trust Deed
and the Offering Memorandum. The Board of the Mamager has overall responsibihty for the
management of the Series Trust gmcture to the extent of its responsibilities as detailed in the relevant
Trust Deed and Offering Memotandum.

The investment management policy is non-discretionary; the Series Trst will invest ils assets ona
1:1 basis between the Zero Coupon Note and the Performance Linked Note (collectively the “Notes™ ).
Consequently, the return under the Series Trust depends on the performance of the Performance
Linked MNae and the Zero Coupon Note. The retum under the Performance Linked Note depends on
a return linked to that of the Underlying Fund, the operating amd financial performance of the
Performance Linked MNote Tssuer and other factors which might affect the price of the Performance
Linked Mote. The returm under the Zero Conpon Note depends on the fluctuation of Austrabian dollars
yield curve, the operating and financial performance of the Zero Conpon Note Issuer, and the other
factors which might affed the price of the Zero Coupon MNote,

The nature and extend of the financial instruments cutstanding at the end of the reponting period and
the msk management policies emploved by the Series Trust are discussed below,

(@) Market risk

Market risk s the risk that the value of financial sssets will fluctuate as a result of changes in marke
prices whether those changes are cansed bry factors specific to the individual assets or factors affecting
all assats in the market,

The Series Trust is exposed to market risk on its investments as the redemption value of the
Performance Linked Note 15 linked to preddermined mules 1o that of the Underying Fund, and,
therefore, the volatilidy of the portfolio, This rsk is mitigated in part by the Zero Coupon Note being
redeemed on their scheduled maturity date of 30 April 2025 at 100%5 of their principal amount.
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

The portfolio of the Underlying Fund comprised the following margin allocation:

Market Sector %o Margin %o Margin

2019 2018
Crops 1. 10% 13.90%
Livestock 1.50% 340%%
Energies 10,806 17.00%%
Base Metals 11.80%% 8.50%%
Precious Metals 6600 18.50%%
Currencies 16.30% 17.60%
Bonds 20 10" 1140
Fates'Cash equities L0 6% 4.70%
[ndex 11.20% 5.00%%
Total 10 D 100,005

() Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will finctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. Unils issued by the Series Trust are denominated in Australian
dollars and units are only issued and redeemedin that currency. The majority of the assets ofthe Series
Trust are invested in the Notes which are denominated in Australian dollars.

The Series Trust is exposed (o foreign cwrency msk to the extent that the Performance Linked Mote
has exposure to cwrency risk as the Underlying Fund to which they are linked will reflect the
component investments which are traded in currencies other than Australian dollars. Accordingly, the
valug of the porfolio and therefore, the value of the Performance Linked Note may be affected
favorably or unfavorably by fluctuations in currency rates.
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For the vear ended 21 July 2019

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continned)
(7)) Market risk (continued)
{f} Forelgh currency risk (cortiriied)
AL31 July 20109, the Series Trust alsohas exposure to currency risk because it has assets and liabilities
denominated in cumrencies other than the Australian dollars. The Series Trust's curmency exposure of

net assets was as follows:

Amalysis of assets and liabilities by currency (totals presented in Australian dollars based on 31 July
20019 and 31 July 2018 exchange rates):

Asat 31 July 2019

IPY usD GBP ALUD Total
AUD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - 279477002 279,477,002
Imerest receivable - 639 4 - 63
Amount due from broker - - - 2940464 2,940,464
Redemption fee receivable - - - 43,300 43,300
Cash and cash equivalents 24,566 647,780 46,665 6,123,760 7.642.771
Total assets 824506 648439 46,669 188 584,516 260,104,200
Liabilities
Redemption payable - - - 4,311,381 4,311,381
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities - 53,595 - 507.473 561,068
Total liabilities - 53,595 - 4,818,854 4,872,449
MNet currency ex posure 824,566 594,844 46,669 283, 765,672 285,231,751

111/204



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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For the vear ended 21 July 2019

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)
(7)) Market risk (continued)
{f} Forelgh currency risk (cortiriied)

Asat 31 July 2018

IPY LsD GEP ALD Tatal
AUD
Assels
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - 291,612 352 291,612,352
Interest receivable - 434 2 17,038 17.474
Amount due from broker & . - 3741024 3,741,024
Redemption fee receivable i . : 53,200 53,200
Cash and cash equivalents 786,332 T0T,358 46,684 4,297 689 5,835,063
Total assels TH6.332 707,792 46,686 299,721,303 301,262,113
Liabilities
Redemption payable = - - 2509710 2,509,710
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities - 46.834 - 556,722 603,556
Total Habilities - 46,834 - 3,066,432 3,113,266
MNel currency ex posure TH6,332 660,958 46,686 296,654 871 298,148,847
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE FERFORM ANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISKE MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)
{a) DMarket risk (continued)
{f} Forelgh currency risk (cortiriied)
Sensitivity analysis
A 1005 (2018:10%%) srengthening of the Australian dollar against the following currencies at 31 July
2019 would have decreased{increased) net assets by the amounts shown below. This sensitivity

analysis represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible change and assumes that all
other variables, in panticular interest rates, rem@in constant,

Mt Assps Met Assels

2019 2018

ALD ALD

JPY 82,457 T8.633
LsD 59,484 66,096
GBRP 4,667 4,669

AT (2018: 10%%6) weakenng of the Austrabian dollar aganst the above cumencies at 31 July 2019
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on
the basis that all cther variables remain constant,

Those investors whoee financial assels are measured in currencies other than the Australian dollars
will be exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, Even when the net asset value of umits of
the Senes Trust is greater than the pnncipal imitially invested in Australian dollars, the net asset value
may have decreased in terms of the investors' cumencies.

(i) Price risk

Price risk anses mainly from uncertainty abont fihre prices of financial instroments held, which are
classified as ~financial assets af fair value throngh profit or loss™. [t represents the polergial loss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements.
Investments in the Notes are valued at the close of each valuation day at a price provided by the

Caleulation Agent. For the purpose of the published Net Assed Value, the price provided by the
Caleulation Agent is treated as conclusive by the Manager, the Trustee, and the Trostee's Delegate,
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Price risk {contiicied)

Price nizsk of the Series Trust anses from price fluctuations of the Performance Linked Note. These
price fluctuations will be as a result of changes in the volatility of the managed commodities futnres
which will have an effect on the value of the predetermined rules to that of the Underlying Fund
These fMuctuations will be reflected in the price of the Performance Linked Note and will affect the
Series Trust's net asset value,

The return on the units depends on changes in values of a portfolio including the Underlying Fund.
The trading price of the units may vary considerably before the maturity date due, among other things,
to fluctuations in the prce of the managed commodities futures that make up the Underlying Fund
and other events. The units are not equivalent to investing directly in the Underlying Fund

A 1%a (20018 1%%) merease in the managed commodities futures fund a0 31 July 20019, with all cther
variables held constant, will increase the Series Trust's ned asszet value and profits by approximately
ALD23.639 (2018: AUDT4,576). A 1% (2018: 1%) decrease in the managed commodities futures
fund at 31 July 2019, with all other variables held constam, will decrease the Series Trust's net asset
value and profits by approximately AUD23.639 (2018: AUDT4.576). This sensiivaly analysis
represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible change,

Some hmitations of sensitivity analysis are:

+  (he market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate
mmber;

o the market price information represents a hypothetical outcome and 15 not intended 1o be
predictive; and

+  future marketl conditions can vary sigmficantly from those experienced in the past.

(#il) Inferest rate risk

Imterest rate risk 15 the risk that the value of financial instruments and futore cash flows will Auctuate
as a result of changes in market interest rates.

A 1% (2018: 1%) increase in the Ausiralian dollar yield curve at 31 July 2019, with all ather variables
held constant, will decrease the Series Trust’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amd
comsequently the net asset wvalue and profits by approximmtely AUDI13,926,639 (2018:
ALDI6AD3506). A 1% [2018: 1%) decrease in the Australian dollar yield curve, with all other
variables held constant, will increase the Series Trst's net asset value by approximately
AUD3,926,639 (2018: AUD16403,506). This sensitivity analysis represents management’s best
estimate of 2 reasonable possible change,
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk {continued)
{fii}) frirerest rafe Fisk (contined)

The Series Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents, which are placed in
interest bearing accounts. The amount of cash and cash equivalents held at 31 July 201% amounts to
2.68% (2018: 1.96%) of the Series Trust's net assel value. The sensitivity to changes in interest rales
on these amounts and their comsequent impact of the Series Trust's net asset value is considered not
to be material. It is not the policy of the Series Trust (o retain cash except to cover anticipared costs,
however the cash position at the reporting date inclodes amounts held to pay shont term repurchases.
The sensitivity to a 1% (2018 1%) movement in the Australian dollar and US dollar interest rates at
31 July 2019 ig highly unlikely to result in a significant increase in mterest eamed on cash held and
management have assessed that any potential increase or decrease inthe Senes Trost's total assets and
profit is not consideredto be material. This sensitivity analysis represents nanagement's best estimate
of a reasonable possible change.

(b) Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with financial
imstitutions and banks, The Senes Trust is subjed toa sigmficant concentration of credit nsk as it 1s
exposedto financial instroment s issued by a single ingtitutionand maintaing cash and cash equivalents
with a single bank.

Credit nzk relates tothe extent to which failures by counterparties to discharge their obligations could
reduce the amount of future cash fows from fAnancial instruments on hand as & the reponting date,

The ability to manage the credit risk is limited as a result of the Series Trust's stated investmert
objectives which require that it invests on a ;] basis between a Zero Coupon Mote isswed by Signum
Momentwm Limited and Performance Linked Mote issued by Quantix Financial Products 11 Limited
and its cash and cash equivalents are placed with the Seres Trust’s Trustee and its affiliated entities
within the Hong Kong and Shangha Banking Corporation Group, In addition, the Calculation Agent
of the Mote is Goldman Sachs Infernational, This credit risk is managed onthe basis that these financial
institutions and banks are independently rated with a minimum rating of * A" or its equivalent.

Credit risk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underlying financial
instrument is subject to IFR.S 9's impairment disclosures or not.

Financial assets subject to [FRE 95 impairment require memis

The Series Trust’s financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are only
other receivables and cash and cash equivalerts. At 31 July 2019, the total of receivables and cash and
cash equivalents was AUD 10063 million, on which no loss allowance had been provided (31 July 201 8:
total of AUD®.65 million on which no loss had been incurred). There is not considered to be any
concentration of credit risk within these assets. No assets are considered impaired and no amounts
have been written off in the period. As only receivables and cash and cash equivalents are impacted
by the IFR.5 9 ECL model the Series Trust has adopted the general approach.
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13. FINANCIAL INSTREUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISE MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)

(by Credit risk (conti nued)

Financial asseis mot subject fo IFRS @5 impairmen! requirenienis

The Series Trust is exposed to credit nsk onits financial instruments. These classes of financial assets
are not subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The carrying value
of these assets, under both IAS 39 (2018) and IFRS 9 {2019) represents the Series Trust’s maximum
exposure to credit sk on financial instruments not subject to the IFRS 9 impairment requiremeants on
the respedive reporting dates. Hence, no separate maximum exposure o credit risk disclosure is
provided for these instruments.

On 24 October 2019, the Caleulation Agert was rated at BEB+HA-2 by S&P Global Ratings, A3/P-2
by hMoody's and AF1 by Fitch Ratings. [n addition, the Seres Trust's cash and cash equivalents are
placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, which was raled at AA-/A-
1+ by S&P Global Ratings, Aa2/P-1 by Moody's on 24 October 2019 The Performance Linked Notes
Izsuer and Lero Coupon MNotes Issuer are not rated.

() Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nisk that the Series Trust will encownter difficulty in raising funds 10 mest
commutments assoctted with fAinancial assels. Lagudity nsk may resall from an inalality 1o sell a
financial asset quickly at an amount close to it fair value.

Under the terms of the offering, the Senes Trost's wutholders may request for ther wmts 1o be
repurclased on each repurchase day of the Series Trst. The Manager will then redeem a proportion
of the Motes held by the Series Trost to fund the unit repurchase. The Notes can be sold before their
maturity date at close to their far value by the provision of one month’s notice, The redemption terms
for the underlying Notes are paid to the unitholders within twenty-three tusiness days from the
cormesponding repurchase day, thus allowing settlement from the partial sale of the MNotes 1o be settled
before the redemption procesds are due to be paid to the unitholders. The Series Trust is exposed to
liquidity risk as the Notes in which the Series Trust invests may not allow the Series Trust to redeem
its urts readily,
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13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continued)
() Liguidity risk (continued)
A samimary of the analyses are as follows:

1 month to 3 months
Less than lessthan 3 toless than  More than |

Asat 31 Tuly 2018 1 month mont hs 1 year vear Total
ALD AL AL ALD ALD
Assels:

Finmancial assets at fair
value through profit or

loss - 279477002 - = 279477002
Interest receivable - G635 - - 663
Amount due from broker 2940464 . - - 2,940,464
Redemption fee receivable 43,300 - - - 43,300
Cash and cash equivalents 7,642,771 - - - 7.642,771
Total assets 10,626,535 279,477,665 . - 290,104,200
Liabilities:

Redemption payable 4,311,381 . . . 4,311,381
Accounts payable and
accmed liabilities 561,068 = = % 561,068
Total labillties 4,872,449 = = = 4,872,449
3 months
1 month to to less
Less than less than 3 than I More than |
Az at 31 July 2008 1 month months year VEAT Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
Aszels:
Fimancial assets at fair value
l:hmugh profit or loss = 291612352 - - 221,612,352
Interest receivable - 17474 - - 17474
Amount due from broker 3.741.024 . . - 3,741,024
Redemption fee receivable 53,200 - - - 53,200
Cash and cash equivalents 5838063 - - - 5,838,063
Total assets 9632287 291,629 826 - - A,262.113
Liabilities:
Redemption payable 2,509,710 - - - 2500710
Accounts payable and

accrued labilities 603,556 - - - 003,556

Total liabilities 3,113,266 - - - 3113266
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE FERFORM ANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

14. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Series Trust to comprise the net proceeds from subscriptions
for and redemptions of units of the Series Trust.

The Series Trust invests virntually all of its assets in accordance with the investment objective (which
was stated in Note 1) of the Series Trest and the investment management policy is non-discretionary.

There are no regulatory or statwtory capital requirements to which the Series Trust must comply with.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the management
of the investment and re-investment of the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power o
borrow money in respect of the Series Trost, declare and direct the Trustee to make distributions or
interim distribitions to the unithelders out of the income and'or the capital of the Series Trost and for
the issue and repure hase of umits of the Series Trust,

The Trustee is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Series Trud and for keeping the register of unithol ders,

All the related panies are entitled to receive fees and expenses om of the assets of the Series Trust.
Details of these fees are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements,

16. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirely shonld be defermaned on the basis of the lowest level inpat that 15 sigmficant (o the fair value
measurament in its entirety, For this purpose, the significance of an input s assessed against the fair
value measurement in its enirety. If a fair value measurement nses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement 15 a level 3 measurement,
Assessing the significance of a particular mpi to the for value measurement in ils enfmely réquires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes *observable” requires sigm fcant judgment by the Manager, The
Marmager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distribated or
updated. reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
imvolved in the relevant market,

The Series Trust’s financial assets are not quoted in active markets, such as the performance linked
notes, Fair values of such assets are detenmined by the Calculation Agent using valuation models in
accordance with the term sheeds. Such models are not based entirely on observable data as a result the
Series Trust's financial assets are all classified withinlevel 3. A table showing the split of the unguoted

imvestments between level 1, level 2 and level 3 has not been included as the financial assets are all
classified as level 3.
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FHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

la.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION {continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the vear ended 21 July 2019, There

were no transfers info or out of the level 3 measurement duning the vear.

31 July 2019 ALUD
Balance as at | August 2018 291,612,352
Disposals during the vear:
Proceeds from sale { 31,155,526)
Wet realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or lees {1059 7455
Net change in unrealised gain on firancial assets ot fair value
through profit or loss 20,079,925
Balance at 31 July 2019 279.477.002
Total gain for the period induded in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period 19,020,176
31 July 30 AL
Balance as at 1 August 2017 338,283,924
Disposals during the year:
Proceeds from =ale { 53,205,082)
MWel realised loss on sale of available-for-sale financial assets { 2.916326)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 5411748
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in the staterment of
comprehensive income:
Gradn on disposal 4,038,088
Balance at 31 July 2018 291,612,352

Total loss for the period included in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting period
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE FERFORM ANCE OF
WINTON 15-05 (AUDY

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 21 July 2019

17. EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of approval of these financial statements,

15,410,000 redeemable units in a tofal redemption amownt of AUD 15,64 1,946 were redeemed from
the Series Trust, There were mo other material events to be disclosed.

18. APPROV AL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and Manager on 24
January 2020.
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2019 11
280,493,290.14 20,795,773
5,957,904.87 441,719
274,535,385.27 20,354,053
270,520,000
1.0148 75
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90

2019 11 14

504,525,507.29

209,052,450.56

192,598,308.60

107,196,116,640
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2018 2017

2,776,023 304,141 2,997,260 328,380

108,904 11,932 394,868 43,262

2,884,927 316,073 3,392,128 371,642

(2,009, 880) (220,202)  (2,274,337) (249,176)

875,047 95,870 1,117,791 122,465

875,047 95,870 1,117,791 122,465

11 750,000 82,170 750,000 82,170
125,047 13,700 367,791 40,295

875,047 95,870 1,117,791 122,465

2019 30

126/204



10 EQ

2018 12 31

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2017
3,563,356 390,401 3,709,443 406,407
3,563,356 390,401 3,709,443 406,407
(3,303,296) (361,909)  (3,173,393) (347,677)
251,597 27,565 (137,917) (15,110)
511,657 56,057 398,133 43,619
14 2 16 2
(4,415) (484) (3.374) (370)
(4,401) (482) (3,358) (368)
507,256 55,575 394,775 43,252
507,256 55,575 394,775 43,252
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1Q EQ
2018 12 31
2017 750,000 82,170 1,473,016 161,384 2,223,016 243,554
394,775 43,252 394,775 43,252
394,775 43,252 394,775 43,252
(1,500,000) (164,340) (1,500,000)  (164,340)
(1,500,000) (164,340) (1,500,000)  (164,340)
2017 12 31 750,000 82,170 367,791 40,295 1,117,791 122,465
2018 750,000 82,170 367,791 40,295 1,117,791 122,465
507,256 55,575 507,256 55,575
507,256 55,575 507,256 55,575
(750,000)  (82,170)  (750,000)  (82,170)
(750,000)  (82,170)  (750,000)  (82,170)
2018 12 31 750,000 82,170 125,047 13,700 875,047 95,870
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2018 2017
12 468,437 51,322 1,592,589 174,484
468,437 51,322 1,592,589 174,484

14 2 16 2

14 2 16 2

(4,415) (484) (3.374) (370)

(750,000) (82,170)  (1,500,000) (164,340)

(754,415) (82,654)  (1,503,374) (164,710)

(285,964) (31,330) 89,231 9,776

394,868 43,262 305,637 33,486

108,904 11,932 394,868 43,262

108,904 11,932 394,868 43,262
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)
)
2018 2017
(251,597) 137,917
5,417 32,500
2018 2017 12 31 10 EQ
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2018 2017
986,165 1,290,550
986,165 1,290,550
@
2018 2017
14 16
14 16
()
2018 2017
(4,415) (3,374)
(4,415) (3,374)
©
2018 2017
14 16
(4,415) (3.374)
(4,401) (3.358)

2035
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2018 2017
317,110 356,159
2,458,913 2,632,851
8,250
2,776,023 2,997,260

2018 2017
2,007,320 2,268,663
2,560 5,674

2,009,880 2,274,337
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2018 2018 2017 2017
317,110 356,159
2,458,913 2,641,101
108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
(2,560) (5,674)
(2,007,320) (2,268,663)
(2,009, 880) (2,274,337)
2018 2017
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000

750,000 750,000
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12
@)
2018 2017
507,256 394,775
4,401 3,358
511,657 398,133
221,237 545,350
(264,457) 649,106
468,437 1,592,589
(b)
2018 2017
(288,519) 74,201
2,555 15,030
394,868 305,637
12 31 108,904 394,868
©
2018 2018 12 31
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
13
2017 12 31 2016
25
2018 18 10
EQ

10 EQ

14
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102 33.1

15
2019 25 10 EQ

1Q EQ

16
10 EQ

2018 18 10 EQ
100 10 EQ

75008 68

2018 12 31
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018
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Note 2018 2017
Us$ Uss$
Current assets
Debtors 8 2,776,023 2,997,260
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
nggltors amounts falling due within one 9 (2,009,880) (2,274,337)
Net current assets 875,047 1,117,791
Net assets 875,047 1,117,791
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 125,047 367,791
Total equity 875,047 1,117,791

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 15 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30 April

2019 and signed for on its behalf by:

Director

Director
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of comprehensive income
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2018 2017
Note Us$ Us$
Turnover 3,563,356 3,709,443
Cost of sales - -
Gross Profit 3,563,356 3,709,443
Administrative expenses (3,303,296) (3,173,393)
Other operating gains/(losses) 251,597 (137,917)
Operating profit 4 511,657 398,133
Interest receivable and similar income 6a 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense 6C (4,401) (3,358)
PI’OfIF on ordinary activities before 507,256 394,775
taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 507,256 394,775

All activities relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of changes in equity

Called up share
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Retained

capital earnings Total
us$ Us$ Uss$
Balance at 1 January 2017 750,000 1,473,016 2,223,016
Profit for the year - 394,775 394,775
Total comprehensive income for the year - 394,775 394,775
Dividends - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity B (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Balance at 1 January 2018 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Profit for the year - 507,256 507,256
Total comprehensive income for the year - 507,256 507,256
Dividends - (750,000) (750,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity B (750,000) (750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 750,000 125,047 875,047
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Statement of cash flows

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 2017

Note US$ Us$
Net cash from operating activities 12 468,437 1,592,589
Net cash generated from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 14 16
Net cash from investing activities 14 16
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (4,415) (3,374)
Dividends paid (750,000) (1,500,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (754,415) (1,503,374)
Net_(decrease)/ increase in cash and cash (285,964) 89,231
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 394,868 305,637
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 108,904 394,868
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

1 Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the* Company” ) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “ The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements.

(a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Company accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed
innote 3.

The Company has early adopted the amendments of FRS102 as a result of the triennial review, which
are effective from 1 January 2019.

(b) Consolidation
Following the sale of 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group I0M) Limited (formerly
known as First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands
B. V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B.V.), the Company is controlled by FCPI Astorg V,
and its results are included within the consolidated financial statements of Saphilux Sarl.

These financial statements are the Company®s separate financial statements.

1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentational currency
The Company*"s functional and presentational currency is United States Dol lars.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot
exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction and non-monetary 1tems measured at fair value are measured using the exchange
rate when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement within‘ Other operating
(losses)/gains.*

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of
services rendered from the provision of administration, corporate management, trustee services
together with ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebates allowed by the Company, and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash received
in advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the period to which it
relates.

(1) Management recharge income/expense

Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/from
subsidiaries and other group entities during the year.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i1) Management fees

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue
at aValuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the
Offering Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some
cases these management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also exists.

) Consultancy fees

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services provided
by the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees
are determined on a case by case basis.

(e) Administrative expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

(i) Management charge

Under the terms of a Group Services Agreement, a management charge is paid to 1Q EQ Group
Services (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Services Limited), a related party, as
compensation for certain management services provided to the Company. The management charge is
presented in the profit and loss account within operating costs.

() Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligationas a

result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(g9) Financial instruments

The company has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial

instruments.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for
objective evidence of impairment. 1T an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset"s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profitor loss.

I there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying
amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not
previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks
and rewards of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the
practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing
additional restrictions.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i1) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, included trade and other payables, and amounts owed to group
undertakings are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes
a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the
future payments (net of directly attributable issue costs) discounted at the market rate of
interest. Issue costs are recognised in the income statement over the term of the debt on an
effective interest rate basis. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. 1T not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(h) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(i) Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company®s shareholders are recognised as a liability in
the financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved
by the shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Related party transactions
The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not whol ly owned within the same
Group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion
of the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on
the Company financial statements.

3 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continual ly evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

(a) Key accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Accrued income
Accrued income is made up of fees accrued to the balance sheet date but yet to be billed which are
deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by management to assess the recoverability.

(ii) Provisions

Provisions are made up of debtors which are not deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by
management to assess the recoverability of debtors.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

4 Operating profit

2018 2017
US$ Us$

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (251,597) 137,917
Directors fees 5,417 32,500

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 the audit fee of the Company was borne by 1Q EQ Group
Management (Isle of Man) Limited (formerly known as First Names Management Limited), an associated
company .

5 Employees and directors

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or
payable by the Company or other affiliated companies to key management for employee services is
shown below:

2018 2017
Us$ Us$
Salaries and other short term benefits 986,165 1,290,550
986,165 1,290,550
6 Net interest expense
(a) Interest received and similar income
2018 2017
Us$ Us$
Bank interest receivable 14 16

Total interest receivable and similar income 14 16
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

6 Net interest expense (continued)

(b) Interest payable and similar charges

2018 2017

US$ Us$
Other (4,415) (3,374)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (4,415) (3,374)

(c) Net interest expense

2018 2017

US$ Us$

Interest receivable and similar income 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense (4,401) (3,358)

7 Taxationon profit onordinary activities

Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either income
or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in Bermuda
exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.

8 Debtors
2018 2017
Us$ USs$
Trade debtors and accrued income 317,110 356,159
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,458,913 2,632,851
Prepayments - 8,250
2,776,023 2,997,260

Amounts due from group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.
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9 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
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2018 2017

us$ USss$

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,007,320 2,268,663
Accruals and deferred income 2,560 5,674
2,009,880 2,274,337

Amounts due to group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.

10 Financial instruments

The company has the fol lowing Financial instruments:

2018 2018 2017 2017
Uss$ Us$ Uss$ Uss$
Financial assets that are debt
instruments measured at
amortised cost
Trade receivables 317,110 356,159
Other receivables 2,458,913 2,641,101
Cash and cash equivalents 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Accruals and deferred income (2,560) (5,674)
Amounts owed to group (2,007,320) (2,268, 663)

undertakings

(2,009, 880) (2,274,337)
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

11 Share capital

2018 2017
us$ USss$
Authorised,
1,000,000 common shares of US$1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued
750,000 common shares of US$1 each 750,000 750,000

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2018 2017

Us$ Uss$

Profit for the financial year 507,256 394,775

Adjustments for:

Net interest expense 4,401 3,358

Operating profit 511,657 398,133
Working capital movements:

Decrease in debtors and prepayments 221,237 545,350

(Decrease)/increase in payables (264,457) 649,106

Cash flow from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)

b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2018 2017

Us$ Us$

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (288,519) 74,201

Translation difference 2,555 15,030

Net funds at 1 January 394,868 305,637

Net funds at 31 December 108,904 394,868
¢) Analysis of change in net funds

At1l Cash Exchange 31 December

January 2018 flows movements 2018

Us$ Uss Uss USs$

Cash at bank 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904

Total 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904

13 Commitments

As at 31 December 2017 the Company"s share capital had a charge over it, granted by the Company®s then
ultimate holding company shareholders, in favour of GLAS Trust Corporation Limited as Security
Agent on behal T of the Secured Parties, inorder to provide security for a Facility Agreement which
had been entered into on 25 May 2016 in relation to the Group”s previous bank facilities.

On 18 July 2018, the Company"s previous ultimate controlling party sold its holding in the Company®s
previous ultimate holding company, 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known as First Names
Holdings Limited), to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B.V.)
and at this time the charge over the Company*"s share was released as part of the transaction.

14 Related party transactions

Transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries within the Group are not disclosed as the Company
has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS102.
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(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

17

15

Subsequent events

On 25 March 2019 the SGG Group re-branded to 1Q EQ Group and the majority of the entity names in the
group have been changed. The Company has changed its name to 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited.

Controlling parties

The Company*®s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known as
Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey

On 18 July 2018, 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group I10M) Limited (formerly known as
First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, was sold to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands
B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B_.V.). Following the acquisition, the ultimate
controlling party is FCPI Astorg V, a French closed ended collective investment scheme in which no
individual investor hold a controlling interest. The scheme is managed by Astorg Partners, a Societe
par actions simplifiee incorporated and existing under the laws of France, having its registered
office at 68 Rue du Faubourg Saint-Honore, 75008 Paris.

As at 31 December 2018, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consolidated is
Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity). The ultimate controlling party is FCPI AstorgV, a French
closed ended collective investment scheme inwhich no individual investor hold a controlling
interest.
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2019 30 2018 30
3,093,877 338,965 3,311,341 362,791
150,064 16,441 230,729 25,279
3,243,941 355,406 3,542,070 388,069
(719,341) (78,811) (540,518) (59,219)
2,524,600 276,595 3,001,552 328,850
2,524,600 276,595 3,001,552 328,850
750,000 82,170 750,000 82,170
1,774,600 194,425 2,251,552 246,680
2,524,600 276,595 3,001,552 328,850
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30
2019 1 1 2018 1 1
2019 6 30 2018 6 30
1,467,746 160,806 1,775,044 194,474
1,467,746 160,806 1,775,044 194,474
(13,798) (1,512) (16,995) (1,862)
197,249 21,611 127,943 14,017
1,651,197 180,905 1,885,992 206,629
1 0 11 1
(1,645) (180) (2,242) (246)
(1,644) (180) (2,231) (244)
1,649,553 180,725 1,883,761 206,385
1,649,553 180,725 1,883,761 206,385
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10 EQ
2019 6 30
2018 1 1 750,000 82,170 367,791 40,295 1,117,791 122,465
2018 6 30
- - 1,883,761 206,385 1,883,761 206,385
- - 1,883,761 206,385 1,883,761 206,385
2018 6 30 750,000 82,170 2,251,552 246,680 3,001,552 328,850
2018 12 31
- - (1,376,505)  (150,810) (1,376,505)  (150,810)
- - (1,376,505)  (150,810) (1,376,505)  (150,810)
- - (750,000)  (82,170)  (750,000)  (82,170)
- - (750,000)  (82,170)  (750,000)  (82,170)
2018 12 31 750,000 82,170 125,047 13,700 875,047 95,870
2019 1 1 750,000 82,170 125,047 13,700 875,047 95,870
2019 6 30
- - 1,649,553 180,725 1,649,553 180,725
- - 1,649,553 180,725 1,649,553 180,725
2019 6 30 750,000 82,170 1,774,600 194,425 2,524,600 276,595
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2019 30 2018 30

45,442 4,979 (168,792) (18,493)
45,442 4,979 (168,792) (18,493)

1 0 11 1

1 0 11 1
(1,645) (180) (2,242) (246)
(1,645) (180) (2,242) (246)
43,798 4,799 (171,023) (18,737)

108,904 11,932 394,868 43,262

(2.638) (289) 6,884 754

150,064 16,441 230,729 25,279

150,064 16,441 230,729 25,279
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2019 2018
(197,249) (127,943)
- 5,417
2019 2018 12 31 1Q EQ
@
2019 2018
11
11
(b)
2019 2018
(1,645) (2,242)
(1,645) (2,242)
©
2019 2018
1 11
(1,645) (2,242)
(1,644) (2,231)
2035
2019 2018
303,450 331,567
2,787,132 2,976,637
3,295 3,137
3,093,877 3,311,341
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2019 2018
713,339 530,469
6,002 10,049
719,341 540,518
2019 2018
303,450 331,567
2,790,427 2,979,774
150,064 230,729
3,243,941 3,542,070
(6,002) (10,049)
(713,339) (530, 469)
(719,341) (540,518)
2019 2018
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Trustee

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of

Winton 15-05 (AUD)

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and

Supplemental Trust Deed under the laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund
Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-05 (AUD) (the “ Series Trust” ) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Series Trust as at 31 July 2019 and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Series
Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the management and administration information. Management is

responsible for the other information.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust’
s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust’ s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
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audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
24 January 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of 10 EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)
(the* Company” ) as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lIreland"”

(“ FRS 102" ).

What we have audited
The Company*"s financial statements comprise:

the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ ISAs” ).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“ IESBA Code” ). We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the Directors”™ report and financial statements but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED) (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
102 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. ITf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED) (CONTINUED)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members as a body
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jersey, Channel Islands

1 May 2019
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